
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE 

 
FORTINET, INC., 
 
   Plaintiff, 
 

v. 
 
FIREEYE, INC., 
 
   Defendant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 
 
 
C. A. No. _________________ 
 
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT 

Plaintiff Fortinet, Inc. (“Fortinet”) for its Complaint against Defendant FireEye, 

Inc. (“FireEye”) alleges upon knowledge as to itself and its own actions and upon information 

and belief as to all other matters as follows: 

INTRODUCTION 

1. Fortinet brings this action against FireEye to seek remedies for FireEye’s 

infringement of U.S. Patent Nos. 8,056,135 (“the ‘135 Patent”) and 8,204,933 (“the ‘933 

Patent”) (collectively, the “Asserted Patents”). 

PARTIES 

2. Fortinet is Delaware Corporation with a principal place of business at 

1090 Kifer Road, Sunnyvale, California 94086.  Since 2000, Fortinet has been a leading provider 

of network security appliances and a market leader in Unified Threat Management.  Fortinet 

currently employs 1800 individuals worldwide to serve its more than 125,000 customers around 

the globe. 

3. On information and belief, FireEye is a corporation organized under the 

laws of Delaware with a principal place of business at 1440 McCarthy Blvd., Milpitas, California 

95035. 

Case 1:99-mc-09999   Document 701   Filed 08/22/12   Page 1 of 8 PageID #: 42856



 

 2 

4. On information and belief, Fortinet and FireEye are direct competitors in 

the network security industry. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

5. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 

1338(a) because this lawsuit is a civil action for patent infringement arising under the patent laws 

of the United States, 35 U.S.C. §§ 101 et seq. 

6. This Court has personal jurisdiction over FireEye.  On information and 

belief, FireEye has significant contacts with this forum and conducts and has conducted business 

within this forum and within this District.  On information and belief, FireEye makes infringing 

products that are and have been offered for sale, sold, purchased, and used in this District.  On 

information and belief, FireEye directly and/or through its sales and distribution network—

including partners, subsidiaries, distributors, retailers, third party administrators, and/or others—

places infringing products within the stream of commerce with the knowledge and/or 

understanding that such infringing products will be sold and used in this District.  On 

information and belief, FireEye is a Delaware corporate entity, and also has a registered agent in 

this District for the purposes of accepting service of process.  FireEye thus lacks any objection to 

this Court’s personal jurisdiction. 

7. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b)-(c) and 

1400(b) because FireEye resides in this District and because a substantial part of the events or 

omissions giving rise to these claims occurred in this District including FireEye’s acts of 

infringement. 
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COUNT I 
INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 8,056,135 

8. Fortinet incorporates by reference Paragraphs 1 through 7 as if set forth 

here in full. 

9. Fortinet owns all right, title, and interest in and to the ‘135 patent, titled 

“Systems and Methods for Updating Content Detection Devices and Systems.”  The USPTO 

duly and legally issued the ‘135 patent on November 8, 2011.  A true and correct copy of the 

‘135 patent is attached to this Complaint as Exhibit A.    

10. By virture of its ownership of the ‘135 patent, Fortinet maintains all rights 

to enforce the ‘135 patent.  

11. On information and belief, FireEye has directly infringed, actively induced 

the infringement of, and/or contributorily infringed one or more claims of the ‘135 patent, 

including but not limited to Claim 1, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271 by (a) making using, selling, 

offering for sale, and/or importing into the United States and this District products and services 

including but not limited to the FireEye Malware Protection Cloud; and/or (b) actively inducing 

others to make, use, sell, offer for sale, and/or import into the United States and this District 

products and services including but not limited to the FireEye Malware Protection Cloud. 

12. FireEye indirectly infringes the ‘135 patent by knowingly and 

intentionally inducing the infringement of the ‘135 patent by its customers and end users of the 

FireEye Malware Protection Cloud.  On information and belief, FireEye’s current Vice President 

of Product Management—Fortinet’s former Chief Technology Officer—has intimate knowledge 

of Fortinet’s patent portfolio including but not limited to the ‘135 patent.  On information and 

belief, FireEye has intentionally hired other employees from Fortinet; those employees also have 

awareness of Fortinet’s patent portfolio given the prominent discussion(s) of Fortinet’s patents 
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and intellectual property rights with its employees.  And, at a minimum, since at least the filing 

of this Complaint, FireEye has had knowledge of the ‘135 patent and by continuing the actions 

described above has had the specific intent to or was willfully blind to the fact that its actions 

would induce infringement of the ‘135 patent. 

13. FireEye also contributes to the infringement of the ‘135 patent because 

FireEye knows that its products are made for use in infringement and are not staple articles of 

commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing uses.  FireEye’s products, including those 

enumerated above, which it sells directly to consumers as well as through its distribution 

partners, are designed to be used (and are used by consumers and end-users) in an infringing 

manner.  Additionally, on information and belief, FireEye’s products, including those identified 

above, were especially designed, made, or adapted for use in an infringing manner.  FireEye’s 

products have no substantial non-infringing uses and are material to the claimed inventions. 

14. On information and belief, FireEye’s infringement of the ‘135 patent is 

willful and deliberate, and justifies an increase in damages of up to three times in accordance 

with 35 U.S.C. § 284. 

15. As a direct and proximate result of FireEye’s infringement of the ‘135 

patent, Fortinet has suffered monetary damages in an amount not yet determined, and will 

continue to suffer damages in the future unless FireEye’s infringing activities are enjoined by 

this Court. 

16. Unless a permanent injunction is issued enjoining FireEye and its officers, 

agents, employees, and persons acting in active concert or participation with them from 

infringing the ‘135 patent, Fortinet will be greatly and irreparably harmed. 
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17. On information and belief, FireEye’s infringement of the ‘135 patent is 

exceptional and entitles Fortinet to attorneys’ fees and costs under 35 U.S.C. § 285. 

COUNT II 
INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 8,204,933 

18. Fortinet incorporates by reference Paragraphs 1 through 7 as if set forth 

here in full. 

19. Fortinet owns all right, title, and interest in and to the ‘933 patent, titled 

“Systems and Methods for Content Type Classification.”  The USPTO duly and legally issued 

the ‘933 patent on June 19, 2012.  A true and correct copy of the ‘933 patent is attached to this 

Complaint as Exhibit B. 

20. By virture of its ownership of the ‘933 patent, Fortinet maintains all rights 

to enforce the ‘933 patent. 

21. On information and belief, FireEye has directly infringed, actively induced 

the infringement of, and/or contributorily infringed one or more claims of the ‘933 patent, 

including but not limited to Claim 1, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271 by (a) making using, selling, 

offering for sale, and/or importing into the United States and this District products and services 

including but not limited to the FireEye Malware Protection System and Virtual Execution (VX) 

Engine; and/or (b) actively inducing others to make, use, sell, offer for sale, and/or import into 

the United States and this District products and services including but not limited to the FireEye 

Malware Protection System and Virtual Execution (VX) Engine. 

22. FireEye indirectly infringes the ‘933 patent by knowingly and 

intentionally inducing the infringement of the ‘933 patent by its customers and end users of the 

FireEye Malware Protection System and Virtual Execution (VX) Engine.  On information and 

belief, FireEye’s current Vice President of Product Management—Fortinet’s former Chief 
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Technology Officer—has intimate knowledge of Fortinet’s patent portfolio including but not 

limited to the ‘933 patent.  On information and belief, FireEye has intentionally hired other 

employees from Fortinet; those employees also have awareness of Fortinet’s patent portfolio 

given the prominent discussion(s) of Fortinet’s patents and intellectual property rights with its 

employees.  And, at a minimum, since at least the filing of this Complaint, FireEye has had 

knowledge of the ‘933 patent and by continuing the actions described above has had the specific 

intent to or was willfully blind to the fact that its actions would induce infringement of the ‘933 

patent.  

23. FireEye also contributes to the infringement of the ‘933 patent because 

FireEye knows that its products are made for use in infringement and are not staple articles of 

commerce suitable for substantial non-infringing uses.  FireEye’s products, including those 

enumerated above, which it sells directly to consumers as well as through its distribution 

partners, are designed to be used (and are used by consumers and end-users) in an infringing 

manner.  Additionally, on information and belief, FireEye’s products, including those identified 

above, were especially designed, made, or adapted for use in an infringing manner.  FireEye’s 

products have no substantial non-infringing uses and are material to the claimed inventions. 

24. On information and belief, FireEye’s infringement of the ‘933 patent is 

willful and deliberate, and justifies an increase in damages of up to three times in accordance 

with 35 U.S.C. § 284.  

25. As a direct and proximate result of FireEye’s infringement of the ‘933 

patent, Fortinet has suffered monetary damages in an amount not yet determined, and will 

continue to suffer damages in the future unless FireEye’s infringing activities are enjoined by 

this Court.  
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26. Unless a permanent injunction is issued enjoining FireEye and its officers, 

agents, employees, and persons acting in active concert or participation with them from 

infringing the ‘933 patent, Fortinet will be greatly and irreparably harmed. 

27. On information and belief, FireEye’s infringement of the ‘933 patent is 

exceptional and entitles Fortinet to attorneys’ fees and costs under 35 U.S.C. § 285.  

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

28. Pursuant to Rule 38(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Fortinet 

demands a jury trial on all triable issues. 

REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Fortinet respectfully prays for: 

a. A judgment that FireEye has infringed and continues to infringe one or 

more claims of each of the Asserted Patents; 

b. A judgment that FireEye’s infringement of the Asserted Patents is willful 

and deliberate, and therefore that Fortinet is entitled to treble damages under 35 U.S.C. § 284; 

c. A permanent injunction enjoining FireEye, its directors, officers, agents, 

and employees, and those acting in privity or in concert with them, and their partners, 

subsidiaries, divisions, successors, and assigns, from further acts of infringement, contributory 

infringement, or inducement of infringement of the Asserted Patents; 

d. An award of damages adequate to compensate Fortinet for FireEye’s 

infringement of the Asserted Patents, including all pre-judgment and post-judgment interest, 

costs, and that the damages so adjudged be increased by the Court pursuant to 35 U.S.C. 284;  

e. A judgment that this is an exceptional case and that Fortinet be awarded 

attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses incurred in this action pursuant to 35 U.S.C. 285; and 
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f. That the Court award Fortinet any other relief as the Court deems just and 

proper.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OF COUNSEL: 
 
John M. Neukom 
Charles K. Verhoeven 
Andrew M. Holmes 
QUINN EMANUEL URQUHART  
    & SULLIVAN LLP 
50 California Street 
22nd Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94111 
(415) 875-6600 
 

MORRIS, NICHOLS, ARSHT & TUNNELL LLP 
 
 
/s/ Jack B. Blumenfeld 
       
Jack B. Blumenfeld (#1014) 
Michael J. Flynn (#5333) 
1201 North Market Street 
P.O. Box 1347 
Wilmington, DE  19899 
(302) 658-9200 
jblumenfeld@mnat.com 
mflynn@mnat.com 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

August 22, 2012 
6289025.1 
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